
Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

Thursday, March 17, 2021 at 6:00 PM 
Transportation Building 

3600 Third St., Ste. A 
Tillamook, Oregon



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting 
Thursday, February 17, 2022 – 6:00PM  
Transportation Building 
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR  
Meeting Minutes 
 

 

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Mary Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.   
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Roll Call: 
Present 
TCTD Board of Directors  
Mary Johnson, Board Chair 
Judy Riggs, Vice Chair 
Jackie Edwards, Director 
Linda Adler, Secretary (zoom)  
Marty Holm, Director (zoom)  
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer (zoom) 
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director (zoom) 

 
TCTD Staff 
Doug Pilant, General Manager 
Tabatha Welch, Finance Supervisor  
Shannon Wakeman, Admin Assistant/ Board Clerk 
Mike Reed, Operations Superintendent  
Cathy Bond, NW Rides Brokerage Manager (zoom) 

 
Guests  
Arla Miller, ODOT 
Kathy Kleczek, NW Transportation Options 
Rachel Haggerty, Tillamook County Commissioners Chief of Staff 
John Spence, Tillamook County Communications System Administrator 
Jeff Hazen, SETD  
Chris Kell, TCTD TAC 
 

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: A revised agenda was distributed prior to 
the meeting which included two resolutions relating to the Vehicle Reserve Fund and 
the Property Management Fund.  
 

5. Public & Guest Comments:   
a. Rachel and John shared the background and illustrated the need and projected 

costs to build new county-wide public safety radio infrastructure. They estimate 
the overall cost of the build to be $20 million, plus maintenance and 
replacement costs. They estimate the project is at least one year from 
appearing on a ballot and is currently gathering input on which governance and 
funding structures would be most desirable to users and the community.   

34



b. Kathy Kleczek thanked everyone who attended SDAO annual conference. 
Sessions are recorded and available online until May.  
 

6. Executive Session:  None  
 
REPORTS 
7. Financial Report: Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch reviewed the TCTD year-to-date 

financial report through January 2022.  
  
8. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Pilant gave the service performance report 

through December 2021. 
 

Dir. Adler asked why college ridership is down so much. GM Pilant responded that he 
isn’t sure, might still be COVID related. Haven’t done outreach due to COVID. Kathy K 
added that Community College attendance across the state is down. Dir. Carlson-
Swanson added that many classes are being offered and taken virtually. Dir. Adler added 
that there was also snowy weather in December. 
 
Dir. Hanenkrat asked why the report was only through December. GM Pilant responded 
that the District is still closing out the month of January.  
 
9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Pilant shared updates from the alliance. At 

the last meeting an update was shared on the NWOTA marketing plan, including a 
300% increase in social media followers. The last meeting also included discussions 
on the website, and discussions on the FMCA driver training changes.    

 
10. Planning & Development:  GM Pilant shared the following updates: 

a. Route 5 Coastliner-  Waiting for the consultant to deliver the final report 
b. Coordinated Plan-  Had kick-off meeting 
c. Customer Service Plan- Staff meets with consultant weekly and project 

continues evolving 
 
11. Grant Funding:   Several applications have been submitted for vehicle expansion and 

vehicle replacements, a bus stop in Hebo, and a Preventative Maintenance grant 
request, and requests for additional funding for renovations to the Transit Center.  

 
12. Facility/Property Management: GM Pilant gave the following updates: 

a. Transit Center: Waiting on final design for renovation  
b. Propane Facility: Exciting changes are taking shape as fueling island is being 

constructed. Canopy is expected to arrive next week. A short-term storage tank 
will be used until permanent tanks are available, due to supply chain shortages 

c. Champion Park Bus Stop: Project out for bid, which are due tomorrow 3/18/22 
d. Pacific City Bus Stop: Still waiting for FTA to approve categorical exclusion     
 

13. NW Ride Brokerage:  Brokerage Manager Bond shared the following updates: 
a. Still overcoming COVID distancing requirements for healthcare transportation.  

35



b. Wapato provider closed doors at end of year and donated vehicles to Ride 
Connection. Ride Connection also hired all Wapato staff and drivers. Very smooth 
transition. 

c. TCTD and NW Rides are implementing a new phone system to be in place by 
March 31, 2022. Also working to add call center features.  

d. Hired a new CSR who began in January. This makes brokerage fully staffed; 
position went unfilled for about a year and a half.   

 
14. Miscellaneous:  

a. New trolley has arrived and has caused quite a splash locally. A lot of excitement 
has been expressed on social media and rental inquiries are already coming in.  

 
Dir. Hanenkrat asked about a letter of support GM Pilant asked the Tillamook County 
Commissioners to fund purchase of two additional trolleys. GM Pilant confirmed that he 
requested the County Board of Commissioners provide a letter of support to strengthen 
a grant application. Dir. Hanenkrat stated that he was surprised to hear about this on the 
news.  
 
Dir. Adler asked when the annual financial audit would be available. GM Pilant responded 
that the auditors have requested an extension. Due to COVID, they are short staffed and 
can’t currently unable to meet their deadline. The extension has been granted.  

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
15. Motion to Approve the Minutes of January 20, 2022, Regular Board Meeting  
16. Motion to Accept the TCTD January 2022 Financial and Service Reports 
 
Motion by Dir. Riggs to approve Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Dir. Edwards. 

 
Motion Passed 

By Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Adler, Riggs, 
Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 

 
ACTION ITEMS 
17. Resolution #22-04 In the Matter of Authorizing the Transfer of Appropriations in the 

Amount of $300,000 from the Contingency Line Item #5291 to the COVID Expense 
Line Item #5291.  
 
Dir. Adler asked if this meant the bonus plan is being considered a COVID expense. 
GM Pilant responded affirmatively. 

 
Dir. Holm pointed out that the contingency line item is 5290. 

 
Motion by Dir. Holm to approve Resolution #22-04 In the Matter of Authorizing the 
Transfer of Appropriations in the Amount of $300,000 from the Contingency Line Item 
#5291 to the COVID Expense Line Item #5291 with correction. Motion Seconded by Dir. 
Carlson-Swanson.  
 

36



 
Motion Passed 

By Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Adler, Riggs, 
Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 

 
18.  Resolution #22-05 In the Matter of Reviewing and Approving the Continuation of the 

Vehicle Purchase Reserve Fund.  
 

Dir. Adler asked what the next review period would be specified by the resolution. GM 
Pilant responded the next review in 2032; 10 years from now.  

 
Motion by Dir. Holm to approve Resolution #22-05 In the Matter of Reviewing and 
Approving the Continuation of the Vehicle Purchase Reserve Fund. Motion Seconded by 
Dir. Edwards.  

Motion Passed 
By Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Adler, Riggs, 

Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 
 
19.  Resolution #22-06 In the Matter to Review and Reauthorize the Continuation of the 

TCTD Property Management Fund. 
 
Dir. Adler asked what the process was for reviewing the funds. GM Pilant explained that 
this is a housekeeping item and that the funds must be reauthorized every 10 years. 
These funds are active and continue to be used. Dir. Holm added that the funds are also 
reviewed during the budgeting process. Dir. Riggs added that she’s thankful that there is 
income in the Property Management Fund.  
 
Motion by Dir. Riggs to Approve Resolution #22-06 In the Matter to Review and 
Reauthorize the Continuation of the TCTD Property Management Fund. Motion 
Seconded by Dir. Carlson-Swanson.  

Motion Passed 
By Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Adler, Riggs, 

Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
20. SDAO Best Practices Program: AA Wakeman shared the five tasks that need to be 

completed for TCTD to earn the full 10% discount on insurance for this year.  
  
21. Staff Comments/Concerns: 

GM Pilant:  No joke.  
 
Operations Superintendent Reed:  No Comment 
  
Finance Supervisor Welch:  No Comment 
 
NW Rides Brokerage Manager Bond: Wants to acknowledge that GM Pilant has been 
with the District for 10 years as of the end of January.  
 

37



Administrative Assistant Wakeman:  No Comment 
 

22. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns:  
Board Chair Johnson: No Comment 
 
Dir. Riggs: Really excited about the trolley and possibly getting a few more. The 
opportunity to replace the PC buses with the trolleys will add a lot of excitement. Hopes 
to see them in local parades. Added that it’s time to do a performance review for the 
GM.  
 
Dir. Adler: Congratulations to GM Pilant on his milestone. Glad everyone made it 
through the winter. 
 
Dir. Hanenkrat: No Comment 
 
Dir. Carlson-Swanson: Congratulations GM Pilant, thank you for all that you do and 
have done for the District.  
 
Dir. Holm:  No Comment 
 
Dir. Edwards:   Thank you to GM Pilant, has seen the changes at the District from the 
beginning and to see the growth has been mind boggling. 
 
Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 7:30pm. 

  
These minutes approved this 17th day of March 2022. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
              
     Mary Johnson, Board Chair      Douglas Pilant, General Manager  

38



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE  

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
 
 
In the Matter of Approving Award of  ) 
Construction Contract to Advanced ) 
Excavation Inc. for Champion Park )     
Apartment Complex Transit Stop ) 
Improvements Project   )       RESOLUTION NO. 22-07 
 

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District ("District") is an Oregon 
special district which is subject to Oregon's public contracting laws; and 

WHEREAS, Board is the Contracts Review Board for the District; and 

WHEREAS, on January 28, 2022, the District issued an Informal Invitation to Bid 
to multiple contractors seeking a contractor to construct the Champion Park Apartment 
Complex Transit Stop Improvements Project with bids due by February 18, 2022 at 2:00 
PM PST; and 

WHEREAS, the District received a single timely bid from Advanced Excavation 
Inc. in the amount of $97,333.00; and 

WHEREAS, the General Manager has found the bid to be responsive and the 
contractor responsible; and  

WHEREAS, the General Manager, pursuant to the authority granted by ORS 
279C.375, has made a written determination that notice of intent to award is impractical, 
which is attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the General Manager of and legal counsel for the District approve of 
the award of contract to Advanced Excavation Inc. in the amount of $97,333.00; and 

WHEREAS, the General Manager of and legal counsel for the District approve of 
the current form of the construction contract and recommend its approval to District;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

That the District, acting as Contract Review Board, approves entering into the 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor with Advanced Excavation 
Inc. attached hereto for the construction of the Champion Park Apartment Complex 
Transit Stop Improvements Project in the amount of $97,333.00.  The General Manager 
is authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf of District. 

Adopted by the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors this 17th day 
of March 2022.  

39



ATTEST: 

 

By:        By:        
 Mary Johnson, Board Chair   Douglas Pilant, General Manager 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



AMENDMENT #1 TO 
STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

  
This Amendment #1 supplements the terms of the underlying Agreement to set forth terms 
required for Oregon Public Contracts.  To the extent of any conflict between the requirements of 
this Amendment #1 and the requirements imposed by the underlying Agreement, this 
Amendment #1 shall control.  The remaining terms of the Agreement remain in full force and 
effect.  The Owner and the Contractor hereby agree: 

1. Mandatory Terms For Oregon Public Improvement Contract. 

 (a) Contractor shall:  

(1)  Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the 
contractor labor or material for the performance of the work 
provided for in the Agreement; 

(2)  Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund 
from the contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of 
the contract; 

(3)  Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the 
state or a county, school district, municipality, municipal 
corporation or subdivision thereof, on account of any labor or 
material furnished; 

(4)  Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from 
employees under ORS 316.167; 

(5)  Demonstrate that an employee drug testing program is in place; 

(6) To the extent the Work includes demolition, salvage or recycle 
construction and demolition debris, if feasible and cost-effective; 

(7) To the extent the Work includes lawn and landscape maintenance, 
compost or mulch yard waste material at an approved site, if 
feasible and cost-effective; 

(b) If the Contractor fails, neglects or refuses to pay promptly a person’s 
claim for labor or services that the person provides to the contractor or a 
subcontractor in connection with the Agreement as the claim becomes 
due, Owner may pay the amount of the claim to the person that provides 
the labor or services and charge the amount of the payment against funds 
due or to become due the Contractor by reason of the Agreement; 

50



 2 
 

(c)  If the Contractor or its subcontractor fails, neglects or refuses to pay a 
person that provides labor or materials in connection with the Agreement 
within 30 days after receiving payment from Owner, Contractor or its 
subcontractor owes the person the amount due plus interest charges that 
begin at the end of the 10-day period within which payment is due under 
ORS 279C.580 (4) and that end upon final payment, unless payment is 
subject to a good faith dispute as defined in ORS 279C.580. The rate of 
interest on the amount due is nine percent per annum. The amount of 
interest may not be waived; 

(d)  If Contractor or its subcontractor fails, neglects or refuses to pay a person 
that provides labor or materials in connection with the public improvement 
contract, the person may file a complaint with the Construction 
Contractors Board, unless payment is subject to a good faith dispute as 
defined in ORS 279C.580; 

(e) Paying a claim in the manner authorized (b) through (d) above does not 
relieve the Contractor or the Contractor’s surety from obligation with 
respect to an unpaid claim; 

(f) No person may not be employed for more than 10 hours in any one day, or 
40 hours in any one week, except in cases of necessity, emergency or 
when the public policy absolutely requires it, and in such cases the 
employee shall be paid at least time and a half pay:  

(1) 

(i) For all overtime in excess of eight hours in any one day or 
40 hours in any one week when the work week is five 
consecutive days, Monday through Friday; or 

(ii) For all overtime in excess of 10 hours in any one day or 40 
hours in any one week when the work week is four 
consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and 

(2)  For all work performed on Saturday and on any legal holiday 
specified in ORS 279C.540; 

(g)  Contractor shall give notice in writing to employees who work on Work 
covered by the Agreement, either at the time of hire or before 
commencement of work on the Agreement, or by posting a notice in a 
location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per day and 
days per week that the employees may be required to work; 

51



 3 
 

(h)  Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, 
copartnership, association or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and 
hospital care services or other needed care and attention, incident to 
sickness or injury, to the employees of the Contractor, of all sums that the 
Contractor agrees to pay for the services and all moneys and sums that the 
Contractor collected or deducted from the wages of employees under any 
law, contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for the 
services; 

(i)  Contractor shall comply with ORS 656.017 unless exempt under ORS 
656.126;  

(j) The withholding of retainage by Contractor and its subcontractors shall be 
in accordance with ORS 701.420; 

(k) In accordance with ORS 279C.560, unless Owner finds in writing that 
accepting a bond, security or other instrument poses an extraordinary risk 
that is not typically associated with the bond, security or other instrument, 
Owner will approve the Contractor's written request to deposit bonds, 
securities or other instruments with the Owner or in a custodial account or 
other account satisfactory to Owner with an approved bank or trust 
company, to be held instead of cash retainage for the benefit of Owner.  In 
such event, Owner will reduce the cash retainage by an amount equal to 
the value of the bonds, securities and other instruments.  Interest or 
earnings on the bonds, securities and other instruments shall accrue to the 
Contractor. Bonds, securities and other instruments deposited instead of 
cash retainage shall be assigned to or made payable to Owner and shall be 
of a kind approved by the Director of the Oregon Department of 
Administrative Services, including but not limited to: Bills, certificates, 
notes or bonds of the United States; Other obligations of the United States 
or agencies of the United States; Obligations of a corporation wholly 
owned by the federal government; Indebtedness of the Federal National 
Mortgage Association; General obligation bonds of the State of Oregon or 
a political subdivision of the State of Oregon; or Irrevocable letters of 
credit issued by an insured institution, as defined in ORS 706.008. The 
Contractor shall execute and provide such documentation and instructions 
respecting the bonds, securities and other instruments as Owner may 
require to protect its interests.  When Owner determines that all 
requirements for the protection of Owner’s interest have been fulfilled, the 
bonds and securities deposited instead of cash retainage will be released to 
the Contractor. If Owner accepts a surety bond from Contractor in lieu of 

52



 4 
 

retainage, Contractor shall accept like bonds from its subcontractors or 
suppliers from which Contractor has retainage. Contractor shall then 
reduce the moneys Contractor holds as retainage in an amount equal to the 
value of the bond and pay the amount of the reduction to the subcontractor 
or supplier. 

(l) Owner shall make progress payments on the Agreement monthly as work 
progresses. Payments shall be based upon estimates of work completed 
that are approved by Owner. A progress payment is not considered 
acceptance or approval of any work or waiver of any defects therein. 
Owner shall pay to Contractor interest on the progress payment, not 
including retainage, due the contractor. The interest shall commence 30 
days after receipt of the invoice from the Contractor or 15 days after the 
payment is approved by Owner, whichever is the earlier date. The rate of 
interest charged to Owner on the amount due shall equal three times the 
discount rate on 90-day commercial paper in effect at the Federal Reserve 
Bank in the Federal Reserve district that includes Oregon on the date that 
is 30 days after receipt of the invoice from Contractor or 15 days after the 
payment is approved by Owner, whichever is the earlier date, but the rate 
of interest may not exceed 30 percent.  Interest shall be paid automatically 
when payments become overdue. Owner shall document, calculate and 
pay any interest due when payment is made on the principal. Interest 
payments shall accompany payment of net due on the Agreement. Owner 
will not require Contractor to petition, invoice, bill or wait additional days 
to receive interest due. When an invoice is filled out incorrectly, when 
there is any defect or impropriety in any submitted invoice or when there 
is a good faith dispute, Owner shall so notify Contractor within 15 days 
stating the reason or reasons the invoice is defective or improper or the 
reasons for the dispute. A defective or improper invoice, if corrected by 
Contractor within seven days of being notified by Owner, may not cause a 
payment to be made later than specified in this section unless interest is 
also paid. If requested in writing by a subcontractor, Contractor, within 10 
days after receiving the request, shall send to the subcontractor a copy of 
that portion of any invoice, request for payment submitted to Owner or 
pay document provided by Owner to Contractor specifically related to any 
labor or materials supplied by the subcontractor. Payment of interest may 
be postponed when payment on the principal is delayed because of 
disagreement between Owner and Contractor.  

(m)  Owner will reserve as retainage from all progress payment five percent 
(5%) of the payment. As work progresses, Owner may (but is not 

53



 5 
 

required) reduce the amount of the retainage and Owner may (but is not 
required) eliminate retainage on any remaining monthly contract payments 
after 50 percent of the Work under the Agreement is completed if, in 
Owner’s opinion, such work is progressing satisfactorily. Elimination or 
reduction of retainage shall be allowed only upon written application by 
Contractor, and the application shall include written approval of 
Contractor’s surety. However, when the contract work is 97.5 percent 
completed, Owner may, at the Owner’s sole discretion and without 
application by Contractor, reduce the retained amount to 100 percent of 
the value of the Work remaining to be done. Upon receipt of a written 
application by Contractor, the Owner shall respond in writing within a 
reasonable time. The retainage held by Owner shall be included in and 
paid to Contractor as part of the final payment of the contract price. Owner 
shall pay to Contractor interest at the rate of 1.5 percent per month on the 
final payment due Contractor, interest to commence 30 days after the work 
under the Agreement has been completed and accepted and to run until the 
date when the final payment is tendered to Contractor. Contractor shall 
notify Owner in writing when the contractor considers the work complete 
and Owner shall, within 15 days after receiving the written notice, either 
accept the work or notify Contractor of work yet to be performed on the 
Agreement. If Owner does not, within the time allowed, notify Contractor 
of work yet to be performed to fulfill contractual obligations, the interest 
provided by this subsection shall commence to run 30 days after the end of 
the 15-day period. 

(n) Contractor shall include in each subcontract for property or services the 
contractor enters into with a subcontractor, including a material supplier, 
for the purpose of performing a construction contract: 

(1) A payment clause that obligates Contractor to pay subcontractor 
for satisfactory performance under the subcontract within 10 days 
out of amounts the Owner pays to Contractor under the 
Agreement; 

(2) A clause that requires Contractor to provide subcontractor with a 
standard form that the subcontractor may use as an application for 
payment or as another method by which the subcontractor may 
claim a payment due from Contractor; 

(3) A clause that requires Contractor, except as otherwise provided in 
this paragraph, to use the same form and regular administrative 

54



 6 
 

procedures for processing payments during the entire term of the 
subcontract. Contractor may change the form or the regular 
administrative procedures Contractor uses for processing payments 
if Contractor: (i) Notifies the subcontractor in writing at least 45 
days before the date on which the contractor makes the change; 
and (ii) Includes with the written notice a copy of the new or 
changed form or a description of the new or changed procedure. 

(4)   An interest penalty clause that obligates Contractor, if the 
Contractor does not pay the subcontractor within 30 days after 
receiving payment from Owner, to pay subcontractor an interest 
penalty on amounts due in each payment Contractor does not make 
in accordance with the payment clause included in the subcontract 
under paragraph (a) of this subsection. Contractor or subcontractor 
is not obligated to pay an interest penalty if the only reason that 
Contractor or subcontractor did not make payment when payment 
was due is that Contractor or subcontractor did not receive 
payment from Owner or Contractor when payment was due. The 
interest penalty: (i) Applies to the period that begins on the day 
after the required payment date and that ends on the date on which 
the amount due is paid; and (ii) Is computed at the rate specified in 
ORS 279C.515 (2). 

(o) Contractor shall, in each of the Contractor’s subcontracts, require the first-
tier subcontractor to include a payment clause and an interest penalty 
clause that conforms to the standards of subsection (n) of this section in 
each of the first-tier subcontractor’s subcontracts and to require each of 
the first-tier subcontractor’s subcontractors to include such clauses in the 
first-tier subcontractors’ subcontracts with each lower-tier subcontractor 
or supplier. 

(p) Contractor expressly agrees to be bound by and comply with prevailing 
rate of wage laws applicable to Contractor’s Work in accordance with 
ORS 279C.800 et seq, including Davis-Bacon Act prevailing wages.  The 
prevailing wage rates in effect when this Project was first advertised are 
hereby expressly incorporated into this Agreement by reference. 
Information on BOLI Prevailing Wage Rates may be obtained at the 
following site: www.oregon.gov/BOLI/WHD/PWR/pwr_state.shtml.  A 
copy of these rates may be requested by calling the Bureau of Labor and 
Industries directly (Bureau of Labor and Industries – (971) 673-0838).  
Information on the Federal Davis-Bacon Act rates may be obtained at the 

55



 7 
 

following site: https://sam.gov/content/wage-determinations. Contractor’s 
workers must be paid not less than the specified minimum hourly rate of 
wage in accordance with ORS 279C.838 and 279C.840 and the Davis-
Bacon Act. 

(q) Contractor shall have a public works bond filed with the Construction 
Contractors Board and shall provide Owner with a copy of such bond 
before starting work unless Contractor is exempt under ORS 279C.836(4), 
(7), (8) or (9).  Contractor shall include a similar provision in any 
subcontract. 

(r) Contractor shall keep the prevailing rates of wage for Project posted in a 
conspicuous and accessible place in or about the Project and, if it provides 
a health and welfare plan or pension plan or both, shall post a notice 
describing the plan, including information on how and where to make 
claims and where to obtain further information, in a conspicuous and 
accessible  place in or about the Project. 

(s) Contractor shall furnish to Owner a weekly affidavit with supporting 
detailed exhibits in a form that complies with the certified statement 
requirements of ORS 279C.845, certifying wages paid and to whom 
during each proceeding weekly payroll period, for itself and all 
subcontractor who are required to submit such certified statements under 
ORS 279C.845.  If Contractor has failed to timely submit a required 
certified statement, Owner, pursuant to ORS 279C.845(8), shall withhold 
twenty-five percent (25%) from any amount owed to Contractor until 
Contractor provides the required certified statement. 

 

OWNER:  
 
By: ________________________________  
Name: ______________________________  
Title: _______________________________  
 
 
CONTRACTOR:  
By: ________________________________  
Name: ______________________________  
Title: _______________________________  
 

56



AMENDMENT #2 TO 
STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

 
 
This Amendment #2 supplements the terms of the underlying Agreement and Amendment #1 to 
set forth terms required by Grant Agreement #34255.  To the extent of any conflict between the 
requirements of this Amendment #2 and the requirements imposed by the underlying Agreement, 
this Amendment #2 shall control.  To the extent of any conflict between the requirements of this 
Amendment #2 and Amendment #1, the more stringent requirement shall control.  The 
remaining terms of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.  The Owner and the Contractor 
hereby agree: 
 

1. Required Terms From Grant Agreement #34225 And Federal Funding. 
 

(a) All requirements of the State of Oregon Grant Agreement #3425 applicable to this 
Contract are hereby incorporated into this Contract, and Contractor assumes to 
TCTD and State all obligations and requirements that are owed by TCTD or 
Contractor to the State under such Grant Agreement as such apply to Contractor.  

 
(b) Owner, State, the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (Secretary), the United 

States Department of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) and their duly authorized representatives shall have access 
to the books, documents, papers and records of Contractor that are directly related 
to this Agreement, the funds provided under Grant Agreement #3425, or the 
Project for the purpose of making audits and examinations. In addition, Owner, 
State, the Secretary, USDOT, FTA and their duly authorized representatives may 
make and retain excerpts, copies, and transcriptions of the foregoing books, 
documents, papers, and records. Contractor shall permit authorized 
representatives of Owner, State, the Secretary, USDOT and FTA to perform site 
reviews of the Project, and to inspect all vehicles, real property, facilities and 
equipment purchased by Contractor as part of the Project, and any transportation 
services rendered by Contractor. 

 
(c) Contractor shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, papers, and 

records that are directly related to this Agreement, the Grant Funds or the Project 
for a minimum of six (6) years.   

 
(d) Contractor shall pay, or cause to be paid, all taxes, utility charges and 

governmental charges of any kind whatsoever that may at any time be lawfully 
assessed or levied against Contractor with respect to the Project. 

 
(e)  Contractor shall make and retain proper and complete books of record, and 

account and maintain all fiscal records related to the Project in accordance with 
all applicable generally accepted accounting principles, generally accepted 
governmental auditing standards, and state minimum standards for audits of 
municipal corporations.  Contractor shall create and maintain all records 
regarding its costs, invoicing and payments made and received regarding the 

57



Project in sufficient detail to verify how funds received from TCTD were 
expended.   

 
(f) In addition to any other indemnity obligations of this Contract, Contractor shall 

defend, save harmless, and indemnify the State of Oregon and its officers, 
employees, and agents, from and against all claims, suits, actions, losses, 
damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses of any nature whatsoever, including 
attorney fees, resulting from or arising out of, or relating to the activities of 
Contractor or its officers, employees, subcontractors or agents in connection with 
the Project, including but not limited to torts (collectively a "Claim").  Neither 
Contractor, nor any attorney engaged by Contractor, shall defend any Claim in the 
name of the State or any agency of the State, nor purport to act as legal 
representatives of the State or any agency of the State, without the prior written 
consent of the Oregon Attorney General.  State may at any time at its election, 
assume its own defense and settlement in the event that it determines that 
Contractor is prohibited from defending the State or that Contractor is not 
adequately defending State's interests, or that an important governmental principle 
is at issue or that it is in the best interests of State to do so.  State reserves all 
rights to pursue claims it may have against Contractor if State elects to assume its 
own defense. 

 
(g) Contractor shall comply with (1) Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (2) Title V 

and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (3) the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (4) all regulations and administrative 
rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (5) all other applicable 
requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and 
regulations. 

 
(h) Contractor shall contract with, and require any subcontractors to contract with, 

competent, properly licensed and bonded contractors and professionals for the 
performance of the Project. 

 
(i) In addition to any other insurance requirements, Contractor shall comply with the 

Insurance Requirements attached hereto (labeled “Exhibit C Insurance 
requirements”) as they apply to Contractor. 

 
(j) Contractor shall comply with the Federal Requirements attached hereto (labeled 

“Exhibit D Summary of Federal Requirements and Incorporating by Reference 
Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for FTA Grants and Cooperative 
Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal Transit Administration 
Master Agreement ("Master Agreement")). 

 
(k) Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal requirements contained in the 

Certifications and Assurances available at www.transit.dot.gov. 
 
(l) Contractor and subcontractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 

national origin, or sex in the performance of this Agreement. Contractor and 

58



subcontractors shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the 
award and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the Contractor, 
or subcontractors to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this 
contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy 
as Owner deems appropriate. 

 
(m) Contractor certifies to State and Owner that they have not and will not use federal 

funds to pay for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any federal department or Agency, a member of Congress, or an employee of a 
member of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal grant, cooperative 
agreement or any other federal award as well as the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, 
cooperative agreement, or other federal award. This certification is a material 
representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this Agreement was 
made or entered into. 

 
(n) Contractor agrees (1) it will not use any violating facilities; (2) It will report the 

use of facilities placed on or likely to be placed on the U.S. EPA “List of 
Violating Facilities;” (3) It will report violations of use of prohibited facilities to 
FTA; and (4) It will comply with the inspection and other requirements of the 
Clean Air Act, as amended, (42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 – 7671q); and the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act as amended, (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387). 

 
(o) Under this Agreement, the Contractor shall at all times comply with the following 

requirements and shall include these requirements in each subcontract entered into 
as part thereof: 

 
1.  Nondiscrimination. In accordance with Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 

5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, 
national origin, sex, disability, or age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to 
comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other 
implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

 
2.  Race, Color, Religion, National Origin, Sex. In accordance with Title VII 

of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., and 
Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply 
with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. 
Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract 
Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of 
Labor," 41 C.F.R. chapter 60, and Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal 
Employment Opportunity in Federal Employment," September 24, 1965, 
42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, as amended by any later Executive Order that 
amends or supersedes it, referenced in 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note. The 
Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without 
regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, or sex (including 

59



sexual orientation and gender identity). Such action shall include, but not 
be limited to, the following: employment, promotion, demotion or 
transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, 
including apprenticeship. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply 
with any implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

 
3.  Age. In accordance with the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 

U.S.C. §§ 621- 634, U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
(U.S. EEOC) regulations, “Age Discrimination in Employment Act,” 29 
C.F.R. part 1625, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 
U.S.C. § 6101 et seq., U.S. Health and Human Services regulations, 
“Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities 
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,” 45 C.F.R. part 90, and Federal 
transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to refrain from 
discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of 
age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing 
requirements FTA may issue.  

 
4.  Disabilities. In accordance with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 

1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., the Architectural Barriers 
Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 4151 et seq., and Federal transit law 
at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate 
against individuals on the basis of disability. In addition, the Contractor 
agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

 
(p) In addition to Oregon prevailing wage, Contractor will comply with the Davis-

Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 as supplemented by DOL 
regulations at 29 C.F.R. part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to 
Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction.” In 
accordance with the statute, the Contractor shall pay wages to laborers and 
mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage 
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, the Contractor agrees 
to pay wages not less than once a week. Contractor shall also comply with the 
Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by DOL 
regulations at 29 C.F.R. part 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public 
Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in part by Loans or Grants from 
the United States.” Contractor is prohibited from inducing, by any means, any 
person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give 
up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. 

 
(q) Contractor shall comply with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 

(40 U.S.C. §§ 3701-3708), as supplemented by the DOL regulations at 29 C.F.R. 
part 5. Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, the Contractor shall compute the 
wages of every mechanic and laborer, including watchmen and guards, on the 
basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work 

60



week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less 
than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 
hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to 
construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic be required to work in 
surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or 
dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchase of supplies or 
materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or to contracts for 
transportation or transmission of intelligence. In the event of any violation of the 
clause set forth herein, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor 
shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, the Contractor and 
subcontractors shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under 
contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such 
territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed 
with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and 
guards, employed in violation of this clause in the sum of $10 for each calendar 
day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the 
standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages 
required by this clause. The FTA shall upon its own action or upon written 
request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or 
cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by 
the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract 
subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by 
the same prime Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to 
satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and 
liquidated damages as provided in this section. The Contractor or subcontractor 
shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section and also a 
clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in this 
agreement. 

 
(r) Contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to 

energy efficiency, which are contained in the state energy conservation plan 
issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.  

 
(s) Contractor shall comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations, 

“Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” 2 C.F.R. part 1200, which adopts 
and supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. OMB) 
“Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension 
(Nonprocurement),” 2 C.F.R. part 180. These provisions apply to each contract at 
any tier of $25,000 or more, and to each contract at any tier for a federally 
required audit (irrespective of the contract amount), and to each contract at any 
tier that must be approved by an FTA official irrespective of the contract amount. 
As such, the Contractor shall verify that its principals, affiliates, and 
subcontractors are eligible to participate in this federally funded contract and are 
not presently declared by any Federal department or agency to be: 

61



 
1.  Debarred from participation in any federally assisted Award; 

 
2.  Suspended from participation in any federally assisted Award; 

 
3.  Proposed for debarment from participation in any federally assisted 

Award; 
 

4.  Declared ineligible to participate in any federally assisted Award; 
 

5. Voluntarily excluded from participation in any federally assisted Award; 
or 

 
6. Disqualified from participation in ay federally assisted Award. 

 
By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as 
follows: The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied 
upon by the Owner. If it is later determined by the Owner that the bidder or 
proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies 
available to the Owner, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, 
including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer 
agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. part 180, subpart C, as 
supplemented by 2 C.F.R. part 1200, while this offer is valid and throughout the 
period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer 
further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier 
covered transactions. 

 
(t) The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: (1) 

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of 
any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement; (2) If any funds other than Federal 
appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, 
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions; and 
(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be 
included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including 
subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 
agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This 
certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

62



when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is 
a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 
1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification 
shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

 
(u) Contractor acknowledges and agrees that, notwithstanding any concurrence by 

the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the 
underlying Contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal 
Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this Contract and shall not 
be subject to any obligations or liabilities to Contractor or any other party 
(whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the 
underlying Contract. The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each 
subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by the 
FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify 
the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 

 
(v) Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil 

Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT 
regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. part 31, apply to its 
actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the 
Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it 
has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the 
underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this contract work is 
being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the 
Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, 
fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal 
Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil 
Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal Government 
deems appropriate. The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes 
to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or 
certification to the Federal Government under a contract connected with a project 
that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by 
FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, the Government reserves the 
right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5323(l) on the 
Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. Contractor 
agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or 
in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the 
clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be 
subject to the provisions. 

 
(w) Contractor agrees to provide a preference for those products and services that 

conserve natural resources, protect the environment, and are energy efficient by 
complying with and facilitating compliance with Section 6002 of the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6962, and U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA), “Comprehensive Procurement 
Guideline for Products Containing Recovered Materials,” 40 C.F.R. part 247. 

63



 
(x) Contractor is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies 

and programs for its employees and other personnel that operate company-owned 
vehicles, company-rented vehicles, or personally operated vehicles. The terms 
“company-owned” and “company-leased” refer to vehicles owned or leased by 
the Contractor. Contractor agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies 
to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text 
messaging while using an electronic device supplied by an employer, and driving 
a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor owns, leases, or rents, or a 
privately-owned vehicle when on official business in connection with the work 
performed under this agreement. 

 
(y) Contractor agrees to establish and implement a drug and alcohol testing program 

that complies with 49 C.F.R. parts 655, produce any documentation necessary to 
establish its compliance with part 655, and permit any authorized representative 
of the United States Department of Transportation or its operating 
administrations, the State Oversight Agency of Oregon, or Owner, to inspect the 
facilities and records associated with the implementation of the drug and alcohol 
testing program as required under 49 C.F.R. part 655 and review the testing 
process. The Contractor agrees further to certify annually its compliance with 
parts 655 and to timely submit the Management Information System (MIS) 
reports . To certify compliance, the Contractor shall use the "Substance Abuse 
Certifications" in the "Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal 
Transit Administration Grants and Cooperative Agreements," which is published 
annually in the Federal Register. 

 

OWNER:  
 
By: ________________________________  
Name: ______________________________  
Title: _______________________________  
 
 
CONTRACTOR:  
By: ________________________________  
Name: ______________________________  
Title: _______________________________  

 

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



Attachment A 
 
 

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 

The General Specifications for the Project will be the Oregon Department of Transportation 
Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction 2021, excepting Part 00100 and all 
Measurement and Payment clauses. 

108



 

 
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 
FOR 

 
 

Curbs, Gutters and Sidewalks 
Champion Park Apartments Bus Stop 

Brookfield Ave 
Tillamook County 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL OF RECORD CERTIFICATION: 
 

Seal w/signature I certify the Special Provision Section(s) listed below are 
applicable to the design for the subject project for __(list specific 
design elements, e.g. "Bridge XYZ" or "Traffic Signals")__ .  
Modified Special Provisions were prepared by me or under my 
supervision. 
 
 

Section(s) ____(fill in section number(s) here)_____ 
 

 FINAL ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST 
 

SECTION 00220 - ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PUBLIC TRAFFIC 

 
Comply with Section 00220 of the Standard Specifications modified as follows: 
 
00220.02(a)  General Requirements - Add the following bullets to the end of the bullet list: 

 

• When an abrupt edge is created by excavation, protect traffic according to the 
"Excavation Abrupt Edge" and the "Typical Abrupt Edge Delineation" configurations 
shown on the Standard Drawings. 

 
Add the following subsection: 
 
00220.40(f)  Limited Duration Road Closure - The Contractor will be permitted to close all 
Traffic Lanes once daily for periods not to exceed 20 minutes in duration during active 
construction. This Work will only be permitted between the hours of 10:00 am and 3:00 pm 
on Brookfield Avenue west of the intersection with Glenview Avenue. 

Attachment B

109



 

SECTION 00221 - COMMON PROVISIONS FOR WORK ZONE TRAFFIC CONTROL 

 
Comply with Section 00221 of the Standard Specifications modified as follows: 
 
00221.03  Traffic Safety and Operations - Replace the bullet that begins “When paving 
operations create…” with the following bullet: 
 

• When paving operations create an abrupt or sloped edge drop off greater than 1 inch, 
protect traffic by installing signing according to the "2 Lane, 2 Way Roadway Overlay 
Area" detail shown on the Standard Drawings. Protect longitudinal and transverse 
Pavement joints by placing and maintaining an asphalt concrete wedge according to 
00221.07(c)(1). 

 
 
00221.06  Traffic Control Plan – Delete the entire Section and replace with the following,  
 
The Contractor shall prepare a TCP for use on the project. Submit the TCP for approval 5 
Calendar days before the preconstruction conference. The Contractor shall provide stamped 
Working Drawings according to 00150.35 that include the proposed TCP showing all TCM 
and quantities of TCD, and the following: 
 
 

• A TPAR plan  

• Staging sequences and details for Work affecting vehicular, pedestrian and bicycle 
traffic 

• Proposed order and duration of the TCM 
 
If additional modifications are made to the TCP, submit stamped working drawings according 
to 00221.06(b), at least 14 Calendar Days before beginning the Construction activities that 
require the TCP changes.  
 
 
00221.07(c)(1)  Paving - Replace this subsection, except subsection number and title, with 
the following: 
 
When the longitudinal joint is greater than 1 inch in height, install additional TCD according 
to 00221.03. Complete the placing of ACP and construction of paving joints according to 
00735.48, 00735.49, 00743.45, 00744.44, 00744.45, 00745.47, and 00745.48, as applicable. 
 
00221.90(b)  Temporary Protection and Direction of Traffic - Delete the bullet that begins 
“Moving temporary barrier to and from Contractor’s stockpile areas”. 
 
  

110



 

NUMBER OF TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN SHEETS: _____ 
 
 
To be accompanied by Standard Drawings: 
 
 
 
TM204............................. Flag Board Mounting Details 
TM211............................. Signing Details US & Interstate Route Shields 
TM570............................. Traffic Delineators 
TM576............................. Traffic Delineator Installation for Non-Freeways 
TM670............................. Wood Post Sign Supports 
TM671............................. 3 Second Gust Wind Speed Map 
TM677............................. Sign Mounts 
TM681, TM687, TM688 ... Perforated Steel Square Tube (PSST)Sign Support Installation 

and Foundation 
TM800............................. Tables, Abrupt Edge and PCMS Details 
TM810............................. Temporary Pavement Markers 
TM820............................. Temporary Barricades 
TM821, TM822 ................ Temporary Sign Supports 
TM840............................. Closure Details 
TM841............................. Intersection Work Zone Details 
TM844............................. Temporary Pedestrian Access Routing 
TM850............................. 2 Lane, 2-Way Roadways 
 

SECTION 00280 - EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL 

 
Comply with Section 00280 of the Standard Specifications modified as follows: 
 
The Agency's NPDES 1200-CA Permit is not applicable to the Project. Before beginning 
Work on the Project, obtain an NPDES 1200-CA Permit from the applicable local jurisdiction 
or an NPDES 1200-C Permit that is applicable to the Project. 
 
00280.06  Erosion and Sediment Control Manager - Delete this subsection. 
 
00280.62  Inspection and Monitoring - Replace this entire subsection, except for the 
subsection number and title, with the following: 
 
Inspect the Project Site and all ESC devices for potential erosion or sediment movement on 
a weekly basis and when 1/2 inch or more of rainfall occurs within a 24-hour period, including 
weekends and holidays. 
 
If a significant noncompliance or serious water quality issue occurs that could endanger 
health or the environment, verbally report it to the Engineer within 24 hours. 
 

111



 

 

SECTION 00310 - REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS 

 
Comply with Section 00310 of the Standard Specifications modified as follows: 
 
00310.41  Removal Work - Add the following to the end of this subsection: 
 
(d) Asphalt Concrete Pavement – Sawcut existing asphalt pavement as shown on Plans and 
remove asphalt prior to constructing new roadway surfacing. 
 
(e)  Signs – Remove the sign, post and foundations as shown on Plans and deliver to the 
Tillamook County …. 
 
(f)  Curb Ramp and Sidewalk – Remove existing sidewalk and curb ramp as shown on Plans 
 

SECTION 00641 - AGGREGATE SUBBASE, BASE, AND SHOULDERS 

Comply with Section 00641 of the Standard Specifications modified as follows: 
 
00641.20  Mixing Plant - Replace the sentence that begins "Mix Aggregate and water…" 
with the following two sentences: 
 
Mix Aggregate and water according to subsection 00641.20(a). Road mix is not allowed on 
this Project. 
 
00641.41  Mixing, Hauling, and Placing - Replace the sentence that begins "Add water to 
the Aggregate…" with the following two sentences: 
 
Add water to the Aggregate while mixing to provide a moisture content according to 00641.12 
and subsection 00641.41(a). Road mix is not allowed on this Project. 
 

SECTION 00730 - EMULSIFIED ASPHALT TACK COAT 

 
Comply with Section 00730 of the Standard Specifications modified as follows: 
 
00730.11  Emulsified Asphalt - In the paragraph that begins "Obtain samples according to 
AASHTO T 40…" replace the words “AASHTO T 40” with the words “AASHTO R 66”. 
 

SECTION 01095 - SITE FURNISHINGS 

 
Section 01095, which is not a Standard Specification, is included in this Project by Special 
Provision. 
 

 
 

112



 

Description 
 
01095.00  Scope - This Work consists of constructing site furnishings such as benches, 
picnic tables, litter receptacles, bicycle racks, and other furnishings as shown or directed. 
 

Materials 
 
01095.10  General: 
 

(a)  Bicycle Racks - Provide bicycle racks meeting the following requirements: 
 

• 6 bicycle capacity 

• On the ODOT QPL 
 
(b) Bus Stop Shelter – A 3-2h handi hut unassembled bus stop shelter contained in 
shipping crates will be provided by the Agency for inspection and pick up at their storage 
facility located at Tillamook County Transit District: 3600 3rd St Suite A, Tillamook, 
OR 97141. Shelter  

 
(c) Bus Stop Sign - A bus stop sign, post and post sleeve will be provided by the Agency 
for pick up at their storage facility located at Tillamook County Transit District: 3600 3rd 
St Suite A, Tillamook, OR 97141   

 
 

 
Construction 

 
01095.40  General - Install all site furnishings as shown and according to the manufacturer’s 
recommendations as applicable. 
 
Manufacturers engineering report and construction details for the 3-2h handi hut bus stop 
shelter are attached as Appendix A.   
 

 

113



Attachment C

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



  PSE Consulting Engineers Inc.
___________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________
__
250-A Main Street E-Mail: info@structure1.com ph. (541) 850-6300
Klamath Falls, OR. 97601 Web: www.structure1.com fax (541) 850-6233

STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERING

CALCULATIONS                
FOR HANDI-HUT SHELTER

PROJECT: HH#41397 3-2H MODEL STRUCTURAL 
ANALYSIS

PROJECT LOCATION: TILAMOOK, OR

PSE PROJECT NUMBER:  HANDI HUT 221- 542

DATE:  SEPTEMBER 23rd, 2021

BY:  VIK Vennavelli
Nabil Taha, Ph.D., P.E.

R 23rd, 2021

E.

123



St
ru

ct
ur

al
 m

em
be

rs
 o

nl
y 

w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

th
is

 s
tru

ct
ur

al
 re

vi
ew

/d
es

ig
n.

 N
on

-s
tru

ct
ur

al
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 N

O
T 

in
cl

ud
ed

.

124



St
ru

ct
ur

al
 m

em
be

rs
 o

nl
y 

w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

th
is

 s
tru

ct
ur

al
 re

vi
ew

/d
es

ig
n.

 N
on

-s
tru

ct
ur

al
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 N

O
T 

in
cl

ud
ed

.

125



St
ru

ct
ur

al
 m

em
be

rs
 o

nl
y 

w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

th
is

 s
tru

ct
ur

al
 re

vi
ew

/d
es

ig
n.

 N
on

-s
tru

ct
ur

al
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 N

O
T 

in
cl

ud
ed

.

126



St
ru

ct
ur

al
 m

em
be

rs
 o

nl
y 

w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

th
is

 s
tru

ct
ur

al
 re

vi
ew

/d
es

ig
n.

 N
on

-s
tru

ct
ur

al
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 N

O
T 

in
cl

ud
ed

.

127



St
ru

ct
ur

al
 m

em
be

rs
 o

nl
y 

w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

th
is

 s
tru

ct
ur

al
 re

vi
ew

/d
es

ig
n.

 N
on

-s
tru

ct
ur

al
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 N

O
T 

in
cl

ud
ed

.

128



St
ru

ct
ur

al
 m

em
be

rs
 o

nl
y 

w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

th
is

 s
tru

ct
ur

al
 re

vi
ew

/d
es

ig
n.

 N
on

-s
tru

ct
ur

al
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 N

O
T 

in
cl

ud
ed

.

129



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

In the Matter of Declaring ) 
and Disposing of Surplus ) 
Property )  RESOLUTION NO. 22-08 

WHEREAS, Resolution 16-05 provides the Board of Directors of the Tillamook 
County Transportation District, by resolution, declare District property as surplus and 
authorize the means by which the District General Manager may dispose of the property; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that the listed property is of no 
further use or value to the District and should be disposed of as surplus property; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 
District Board of Directors: 

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors declares the 
following equipment as surplus property and directs the General Manager to dispose of 
it as he determines appropriate and most advantageous to the District or community at 
large. 

• 2010 Ford Glavel Concord VIN 3FRNF6FC9AV235209
• 2010 Ford Glavel Concord VIN 3FRNF6FC7AV235208
• 2010 Ford Glavel Concord VIN 3FRNF6FC8AV275927
• 2011 Ford Glavel Concord VIN 3FRNF6FC4BV385634
• 2016 Dodge Caravan VIN 2C7WDGBG9GR262362
• 2016 Dodge Caravan VIN 2C7WDGBG9GR313732
• 2017 Dodge Caravan VIN 2C7WDGBG4HR743096
• 2017 Dodge Caravan VIN 2C7WDGBG4HR743041

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of March 2022. 

ATTEST: 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Mary Johnson, Board Chair Douglas Pilant, General Manager 

130


	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	Present
	TCTD Board of Directors
	TCTD Staff
	Doug Pilant, General Manager
	Guests
	Arla Miller, ODOT
	Kathy Kleczek, NW Transportation Options
	Rachel Haggerty, Tillamook County Commissioners Chief of Staff
	John Spence, Tillamook County Communications System Administrator
	Jeff Hazen, SETD
	Chris Kell, TCTD TAC
	4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: A revised agenda was distributed prior to the meeting which included two resolutions relating to the Vehicle Reserve Fund and the Property Management Fund.
	5. Public & Guest Comments:
	a. Rachel and John shared the background and illustrated the need and projected costs to build new county-wide public safety radio infrastructure. They estimate the overall cost of the build to be $20 million, plus maintenance and replacement costs. T...
	b. Kathy Kleczek thanked everyone who attended SDAO annual conference. Sessions are recorded and available online until May.
	6. Executive Session:  None
	REPORTS
	7. Financial Report: Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch reviewed the TCTD year-to-date financial report through January 2022.
	8. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Pilant gave the service performance report through December 2021.
	Dir. Adler asked why college ridership is down so much. GM Pilant responded that he isn’t sure, might still be COVID related. Haven’t done outreach due to COVID. Kathy K added that Community College attendance across the state is down. Dir. Carlson-Sw...
	Dir. Hanenkrat asked why the report was only through December. GM Pilant responded that the District is still closing out the month of January.
	9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Pilant shared updates from the alliance. At the last meeting an update was shared on the NWOTA marketing plan, including a 300% increase in social media followers. The last meeting also included discussions on ...
	10. Planning & Development:  GM Pilant shared the following updates:
	a. Route 5 Coastliner-  Waiting for the consultant to deliver the final report
	b. Coordinated Plan-  Had kick-off meeting
	c. Customer Service Plan- Staff meets with consultant weekly and project continues evolving
	11. Grant Funding:   Several applications have been submitted for vehicle expansion and vehicle replacements, a bus stop in Hebo, and a Preventative Maintenance grant request, and requests for additional funding for renovations to the Transit Center.
	12. Facility/Property Management: GM Pilant gave the following updates:
	a. Transit Center: Waiting on final design for renovation
	b. Propane Facility: Exciting changes are taking shape as fueling island is being constructed. Canopy is expected to arrive next week. A short-term storage tank will be used until permanent tanks are available, due to supply chain shortages
	c. Champion Park Bus Stop: Project out for bid, which are due tomorrow 3/18/22
	d. Pacific City Bus Stop: Still waiting for FTA to approve categorical exclusion
	13. NW Ride Brokerage:  Brokerage Manager Bond shared the following updates:
	a. Still overcoming COVID distancing requirements for healthcare transportation.
	b. Wapato provider closed doors at end of year and donated vehicles to Ride Connection. Ride Connection also hired all Wapato staff and drivers. Very smooth transition.
	c. TCTD and NW Rides are implementing a new phone system to be in place by March 31, 2022. Also working to add call center features.
	d. Hired a new CSR who began in January. This makes brokerage fully staffed; position went unfilled for about a year and a half.
	14. Miscellaneous:
	a. New trolley has arrived and has caused quite a splash locally. A lot of excitement has been expressed on social media and rental inquiries are already coming in.
	Dir. Hanenkrat asked about a letter of support GM Pilant asked the Tillamook County Commissioners to fund purchase of two additional trolleys. GM Pilant confirmed that he requested the County Board of Commissioners provide a letter of support to stren...
	Dir. Adler asked when the annual financial audit would be available. GM Pilant responded that the auditors have requested an extension. Due to COVID, they are short staffed and can’t currently unable to meet their deadline. The extension has been gran...
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	Motion by Dir. Riggs to approve Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Dir. Edwards.
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Adler, Riggs,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	ACTION ITEMS
	Motion by Dir. Holm to approve Resolution #22-04 In the Matter of Authorizing the Transfer of Appropriations in the Amount of $300,000 from the Contingency Line Item #5291 to the COVID Expense Line Item #5291 with correction. Motion Seconded by Dir. C...
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Adler, Riggs,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	18.  Resolution #22-05 In the Matter of Reviewing and Approving the Continuation of the Vehicle Purchase Reserve Fund.
	Dir. Adler asked what the next review period would be specified by the resolution. GM Pilant responded the next review in 2032; 10 years from now.
	Motion by Dir. Holm to approve Resolution #22-05 In the Matter of Reviewing and Approving the Continuation of the Vehicle Purchase Reserve Fund. Motion Seconded by Dir. Edwards.
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Adler, Riggs,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	19.  Resolution #22-06 In the Matter to Review and Reauthorize the Continuation of the TCTD Property Management Fund.
	Dir. Adler asked what the process was for reviewing the funds. GM Pilant explained that this is a housekeeping item and that the funds must be reauthorized every 10 years. These funds are active and continue to be used. Dir. Holm added that the funds ...
	Motion by Dir. Riggs to Approve Resolution #22-06 In the Matter to Review and Reauthorize the Continuation of the TCTD Property Management Fund. Motion Seconded by Dir. Carlson-Swanson.
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Adler, Riggs,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	20. SDAO Best Practices Program: AA Wakeman shared the five tasks that need to be completed for TCTD to earn the full 10% discount on insurance for this year.
	21. Staff Comments/Concerns:
	GM Pilant:  No joke.
	Operations Superintendent Reed:  No Comment
	Finance Supervisor Welch:  No Comment
	NW Rides Brokerage Manager Bond: Wants to acknowledge that GM Pilant has been with the District for 10 years as of the end of January.
	Administrative Assistant Wakeman:  No Comment
	22. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns:
	Board Chair Johnson: No Comment
	Dir. Riggs: Really excited about the trolley and possibly getting a few more. The opportunity to replace the PC buses with the trolleys will add a lot of excitement. Hopes to see them in local parades. Added that it’s time to do a performance review f...
	Dir. Adler: Congratulations to GM Pilant on his milestone. Glad everyone made it through the winter.
	Dir. Hanenkrat: No Comment
	Dir. Carlson-Swanson: Congratulations GM Pilant, thank you for all that you do and have done for the District.
	Dir. Holm:  No Comment
	Dir. Edwards:   Thank you to GM Pilant, has seen the changes at the District from the beginning and to see the growth has been mind boggling.
	Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 7:30pm.
	These minutes approved this 17th day of March 2022.
	ATTEST:



